Changes from DA to AoD
This section is not for every change between DA and AoD but rather the ones that trip the most people up. 

1. Anti-personnel - Extra damage from critical hits only affect the target(s) not the infantry in base contact. Critical misses do not damage the infantry in base contact. 

2. Only the primary attacker of a capture attempt needs to be an infantry with speed mode foot. 

3. When a target's Special Equipment is applied to the target, the active player chooses in which order they are applied. The active player being the attacker. 

4. Free spin - a friendly unit based by an opposing unit is allowed to change it's facing, it does not require the friendly unit to have the basing unit in it's front arc. 

5. Evade - Running with evade on and taking no heat is considered using evade, therefore Evade SE as a circle would require a click of pushing damage be taken when running for no heat.

AoD Clarifications
This section is for clarifications on issues in AoD.

1. A 'Mech capable of doing so may Repair as part of an assault order. 

2. Enhanced Imaging - when rolled for successfully will cancel the camouflage, hindering terrain, and hull down modifers. (Exception - Prowler piloted by Phuong Trahn will retain the Hull Down Modifier) 

3. Allied factions cannot benefit from a faction pride ability or a faction ability unless the CEC states otherwise. 

4. Merc Contract CECs and Recruitment costs of gunslingers allow the affected units use of Faction pride cards or Faction abilities. 

5. Special Equipment counts as being 'received' (Gear page 37 RoW) even when it is not applicable. I.E. If a combat value would receive special equipment from gear while having special equipment on its combat dial and neither special equipment is optional, the special equipment on the dial is in effect. (Plain english - If your Mech has Reactive Armor on the dial putting Reflective on as gear will do no good when the Reactive is showing on the dial as it is not optional and will be on even when hit with an energy shot.) 

6. If a player uses a friendly unit with Bypass to gain control of a unit from a faction other than those listed on an SA that player is using AND the faction is not related as part of a Grand or House alliance, they can no longer use that SA. If the unit in question is eliminated or captured, you no longer control it, so it is no longer part of your battleforce. The SA would be active again. 

7. When resolving the attack sequence during step 6, the Rules of Precedence set for resolving CEC's apply, unless the card states otherwise. 

8. The timing of Special Abilities in the attack sequence (Example Tara's 'Full Barrage'): The second part of the first sentence, “this unit may not use damage special equipment for this attack,” actually takes place in step 3. The damage modifiers depend on what damage is being modified. If damage scored is being modified, it should occur in step 6c. If damage dealt is being modified, it takes place after step 6g. 

9. ‘Mechs and Quad ‘Mechs ignore infantry bases for movement purposes, but not the terrain underneath them. 

10. When using Decoy and ECM suite together, the second attack roll forced by the Decoy SE can not be made due to ECM Suite’s wording. In denying the second roll, ECM Suite means that this effect does not happen and so the original attack result (a success) will therefore stand. 

11. Wahab Fusili can not force an attack to be made indirectly that would otherwise be a direct attack, nor the other way around. 

12. The Predator faction ability is limited to the original damage value and attack type used to make the attack that triggered the ability. 

13. The +1 damage for charging added to the scored damage of a charge is not considered a modifier of the damage value of the charging piece. The +1 value to damage scored is not considered when calculating damage taken by the charging unit. So, if my unit charges and has a primary damage value of 2, I will score 3 impact damage (2+1) but will be dealt 1 pushing damage (2/2=1). However, if I were using the House Kurita faction pride card (“a friendly unit gets +1 to its damage value for that turn”) and I applied it to my primary damage value when making the charge attack I will score 4 impact damage ((2+1)+1=4) and be dealt 2 pushing damage ((2+1)/2 = 1.5 rounded up). 

14. Battlemech Jump Packs does not confer Jump Jet special equipment. It does not give a unit the ability to perform a DFA. 

15. The target of a Special Attack is determined if/when the line of fire is drawn for the attack and/or prior to moving the active unit. 

16. Transports can move in formation and be given an unload or embark order as long as they are the primary unit in the movement formation. 

17. TSEMP requires a successful attack for the SE to be effective, it does not require scoring/dealing damage. 

18. The heat gained from the use of PPC Capacitor SE and Gear is dependant upon the success of the attack. Heat from pushing, if pushed or an assault order is still taken regardless of the success/failure of the attack. 

19. Your "hand" may not have duplicate Planetary Conditions by set number or by name. 

20. Orders that do not come from your order total are still orders that follow the RoW for units receiving orders. Some pilot abilities allow units to be given more than one order during a turn. Each order counts as an order, regardless of how that unit received the order. Reconnaissance special equipment allows you to give the unit with the SE a move order that does not come from your order total for the turn, though it is still an order. These “free” orders are still treated as orders per the RoW unless stated otherwise by the ability that provided them. 

21. Only one gear per combat value unless the gear states "this gear may be used with this unit's other non-<<blank>> <<insert combat value>> special equipment." 

22. No target of a multiple ranged combat attack may benefit from the called-shot modifier if one of the targets is in base contact with the 
attacker. 

23. The abilities granted by Faction Pride and Situational Alliance CEC's are available for use only as long as a unit that meets the criteria set on the card are still in your battleforce. For example, if you have a "Steiner/Stormhammer" faction pride, you may continue to use the ability as long as you have a "Steiner/Stormhammer" unit still in your battleforce. 

24. The units from Wolf Strike #106 "Vindication" Warwolf and #118 "Deception" Vixen have not been released by WizKids Games, and as such are not tournament legal for play in a sanctioned MechWarrior event. 

25. When using TSEMP or Homing Beacon SE and Gear, damage is still handled per the normal rules. Nothing in either SE description prevent damage from being dealt by the attack.

Other Clarifications 

1. Damage from more than one artillery marker does not 'stack' (from the same artillery unit) 

2. Units in transports are 'Friendly units' for the purpose of CEC's (with the exception of a captives which can be tansported). This means they can be affected by CEC's. For example "Caustic Atmosphere" can effect infantry without "battle armor" in the name if they are inside a transport. 

3. When infantry or vehicles are given a second token from an Ability, SE or other mechanic other than a player issuing an order to his own unit, the unit takes damage for being pushed. 

4. When a unit appears to be on the “cusp”, as determined by the battlemaster, of another units front and rear arc, it is considered to be in both. 

5. The "Wolf Dragoon's" P-### pilots that have recruit costs on them are to be treated like generic P-### pilots with a few exceptions not covered clearly in the rulebook, but can be interpreted from the cards themselves. 

*They can use their pilot abilities in any 'Mech they can legally pilot.
*They do not pay a recruit cost or need to be recruited via a MC to be placed into a 'Mech with a faction symbol on the base.
*If they are placed into a 'Mech with no faction symbol on the base, and a MC is not included in your battleforce, you may use their recruit cost to recruit them to any faction they can legally be recruited to (which right now is any of them) 

Q & A

Q. What happens when a unit uses Alpha Strike special equipment and it has the Sea Fox Predator ability? Can it make the second ranged combat attack even though its dial has been turned to shut down? A. Currently, yes. At the moment, the only stipulation about shutdown units in the rules is that they may only receive vent orders. Since the unit doesn't need to be given an order (it's already been given one to make the attack) the second attack can be completed and the order resolved. 
Q: Can Coolant Pod and Alpha Strike be used together? 
A: Yes,when using Alpha Strike SE and Coolant Pod Gear together, the order goes as such: Alpha Strike modifies the damage scored during Step 6C, which results in the ‘Mech being shut down. Coolant Pod would then activate if it was not cancelled when the attack resolves in Step 7. 

Q: How does refocussed laser work? 

1. When you select a target, does the line of fire stop at the target's center dot or does it extend past it?
A: The LoF continues past the target’s center dot, out to the maximum range of the firing unit (due to the 2nd sentence on the card).

2. When secondary targets are determined by the line of fire, how is range determined? Do you measure to where the line of fire to the original target first intersects the secondary target(s) base(s)? Or do you draw the line of fire to the centre dot of the new target?
A: Range is determined by the maximum range of the damage value (primary or secondary) that the gear is attached to. Draw your line of fire through (not just to) the primary target, out to the max range of the weapon system, every figure whose base is crossed by that line of fire becomes a target.

3. What if the LOF to the additional target is blocked? Is it blocked or is that condition not relevant for the secondary targets?

4. What if the LOF to secondary targets crosses terrain that affects the defense and it doesn't to others?
A: Terrain would affect each target separately. Blocking terrain still blocks the line of fire, as only unit bases are ignored for this attack. The attack roll would stand for all targets, but their defenses could be modified differently based on the presence of hindering terrain, etc.

5. What if the range to the target as determined is less than the attacker's minimum range? 
A: The original target can’t be within minimum range. If the LoF crosses their base, they’re affected.

6. What if the attack crosses the bases of friendly units? The rulebook says friendly units may not be targeted by a damaging attack. Does this mean the attack cannot be made? Does it mean the attack can be made but friendly units are not targeted? Or can the attack be made and the friendly units all become targets as well?
A: The card takes precedence over the rulebook, and so the attack continues, and friendly units can be damaged.

7. What if the attacker is in base contact with an opposing unit (and hence would be subject to the called shot modifier) and one or more of the secondary targets is in base contact with a friendly unit (and hence would be subject to the friendly fire modifier)? Is the attack legal?
A: The Gear again will take precedence over the rulebook and the net effect is that those units become targets. The card makes them legal targets.

8. (Extra Bonus Issue!) Decoy. Can the defender force the entire attack to be rerolled, or does the original roll count for every figure without decoy, then the dice are re-rolled for those figures with Decoy? 
A: It is treated just like a RCA with multiple targets with decoy, reroll again for units with decoy, so the original attack stands as is for units without decoy, the units with decoy get their 2nd chance. 

Q: When I play the Mission: Defend Home Base, M-019, what exactly do I need to complete the mission?
A: You must have an able unit in your deployment zone and no opposing able units in your deployment zone.

Q: What exactly happens when I successfully attack a mech using the TSEMP special equipment?
A: When a mech with 1 token is the target of a successful RCA that does not shut it down(via taking heat) using TSEMP SE, the mech is shutdown and given a second order token. On the target mech's controller's next turn, the tokens will clear and the mech will restart at the beginning of the turn and be ready to receive orders that turn.

Q:When GS-039 Toni Rivera uses the ability Eternal Rest and eliminates an opposing unit with a ranged combat attack, when is the second ranged combat attack made?
A: The second attack works like pulse, except there is no original target to return to. A new target is declared and the second ranged combat attack is made immediately after the first opposing unit was eliminated. 

Q: When L-028 Kisho Nova Cat uses the Anticipate ability and starts the order in base contact with an opposing unit and fails a break away roll, what happens? 
A: If Kisho would end his move order in base contact with an opposing unit, then his pilot ability could not be used. The move to break away would then become the order you gave him for the turn.

Q: How do I use the Mercenary Faction Pride, what are the requirements for the lower and higher costs? 
A:To be able to play and use the Merc FP at the lower cost: 

· Your army must consist only of units with no faction symbol, gunslingers that are not recruited by paying for a recruitment, or Wolf Hunters faction symboled units that actually have the WH faction symbol printed on their bases. 

To be able to play and use the Merc FP at the higher cost: 

· Your army must have at least ONE unit with no faction symbol, or a gunslinger that is not recruited by paying for a recruitment, or a Wolf Hunters faction symboled unit that actually has the WH faction symbol printed on its base. 

Two things to note when checking for these options:

· Gunslinger put into Wolf Hunter 'Mechs do not have to pay for recruitment to Wolf Hunters. 

· Once your army no longer has any units that meet the above criteria, the Faction Pride ability is no longer available to use. 

Current Alliances
House Alliances:


Republic of the Sphere - Highlanders
Clan Nova Cat - Spirit Cats
House Kurita - Dragon's Fury
House Davion - Swordsworn
House Steiner - Stormhammers
Clan Wolf - Steel Wolves

Grand Alliance 

House Kurita - Clan Nova Cat

Solaris 7 Clarifications
1. During the clean-up phase, damage taken is resolved first, then heat. 

2. A Vent order is the only order that can be given to a Shutdown 'Mech. 

3. Recruitment costs are not used in Solaris VII, but recruitment restrictions are still in effect. For example, a gunslinger who has a Clan Jade Falcon faction symbol with a slash through it can not be placed into a CJF 'Mech, although they could be placed in any other faction's 'Mech. Legendary pilots can only pilot the faction/s listed on their card. 
